History of the UTA Shorthorn
By Brenda Davis

Out where the hand clasps a little stronger,

Out where the smile dwells a little longer—

That’s where the Shorthorn begins.

"Out Where the Shorthorn Begins" by Gussie Richards, Grubbs Vocational College, Class of 1920.

First known as The Grubonian, the Shorthorn was the brainchild of two Grubbs Vocational College students, Nat Killough and Herman Brautigam. The newspaper published its first issue February 14, 1919. The first and only issue contained two main stories. Both were given equal display on page one.

The desire to publish a school yearbook and offer students a way to express themselves led to the first continuous student publication at Grubbs Vocational College. Professor Thomas E. Ferguson agreed to serve as faculty adviser.

The two budding publishers decided to replace the newspaper format with a magazine. Student input was sought to rename the new publication. GVC Dean M.L. Williams offered a $2.50 prize to the student submitting the winning name for the publication. The choice was narrowed to three from such entries as Grubbagie Journal, Texas Vocal Grubworm and Horse and Sense Magazine. After three student body votes, the Shorthorn was born.

Killough was chosen as editor-in-chief. The magazine consisted of seven departments, (eight if the business department is counted), each headed by an editor and at least two assistant editors. Story material was collected in a box placed in the college’s main hallway. The subscription rates were $1.50 yearly or 25 cents per issue. After the first issue, 100 percent of the student and faculty had subscribed.

Jewel F. Kingrea was appointed the first female editor-in-chief beginning with the October 1920 publication. 

In 1923, the Texas Legislature renamed the college North Texas Junior Agricultural College. The Shorthorn updated its nameplate to reflect the name change. This was one of many changes the student publication would incorporate over the next few years.

Bylines were first used in the spring of 1924. Student feature stories were introduced during the 1931-32 school year. During the 1938-39 school year, the newspaper size was increased from six to seven columns, date lines were introduced and inside page numbers were used for the first time. In the fall of 1938, lead paragraphs on major stories were set in two-column, ten-point type. 

The late 1930s and early 1940s brought still more change for the student publication. International and national stories were featured on the front page along with student and faculty stories. 

In 1943, another first occurred when the two-page masthead listed a student photographer. Student photographers had been working for the Shorthorn for many years, but Horace Hagler was the first to receive credit for his position.

When the college changed its name to Arlington State College in the early 1950s name changes were necessary to rid the college of its "Aggie" influence. The Shorthorn was no exception. A new nameplate was adopted, and the college yearbook changed names. 

The college received senior status during the 1959 Texas Legislature session. The first editor-in-chief in the senior college period was Judy Walker, a sophomore pre-journalism major from Irving. 

Since the school had been elevated to senior college status, the Shorthorn rejoined the Texas Intercollegiate Press Association in 1961. That began an award-winning tradition that remains today. 

The Shorthorn ushered in the 1960s with little fanfare. It wasn’t until the Texas A&M University System Board of Director’s announced its intention of reclaiming the college that the newspaper staff took action. 

Although the Shorthorn didn’t make any editorial comment, the newspaper reported all student reaction, including the 2,500-student rally held in front of the student center. A month later, Governor John Connally proposed that the college be transferred to the University of Texas System. In April of that year, the decision for Arlington College to become part of the UT System was finalized. The name was subsequently changed to The University of Texas at Arlington.

Controversy stuck during the 1968-69 school years, when minority students openly opposed the college’s Rebel theme. The Shorthorn staff didn’t take a stand on the situation until the student government voted without a referendum to phase out the Rebel theme and begin a search for a new one. A pro-Rebel stance was adopted by the staff. Donna Darovich, along with advisor Dorothy Estes, inherited the Rebel controversy in the fall of 1968.. The controversy continued for months. The issue was eventually settled and the Rebel theme no longer exists.

Four UTA students -- Jim Black, Don Sloan, Mary Lynn Hebert and Bob Severn -- were elected to offices of the Texas Intercollegiate Press Association in November 1970. 

In 1972, the newspaper announced it would begin publishing twice weekly. 

For years Estes had advocated publishing the newspaper daily. The university’s administration finally agreed and daily publications began in the fall of 1976.

The late 1980s and early ‘90s brought more change for the student publication. A move to the basement of the Student Center and the incorporation of computers were just a few changes the newspaper encountered.

The Shorthorn became involved in another controversy during the mid-1990s. A series of articles focusing on the spending of the university administration led to the resignation of the university’s president and provost. The newspaper received recognition from The Society of Professional Journalists for outstanding investigative reporting. 

The Shorthorn continues its winning habits. Most recently by winning the Gold Crown award from The Colombia Scholastic Press Association in the fall of 2000.
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